
 
 
 
 
 

There may be a quorum of the Belle Plaine City Council present at the meeting.  
 

218 North Meridian St., P.O. Box 129, Belle Plaine, MN  56011 Phone 952-873-5553 fax 952-873-5509 
www.belleplainemn.com 

BELLE PLAINE PARK BOARD 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA  

CITY HALL, 218 NORTH MERIDIAN STREET 
PLEASE USE THE NORTH ENTRANCE  

 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 22, 2019 

5:00 P.M. 
 
 
 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER.  
1.1. Roll Call. 
 

 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
 

 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.   
3.1. Regular Session Minutes of December 17, 2018. 
 

 4. TREASURERS REPORT. 
4.1. Park Fund 205 Budget Update. 

 
 5. BUSINESS. 

5.1. Resolution Supporting Beautiful Prairie Trail Looping Grant Application to SMSC 
Scott County Trail Grant Program and Providing Local Match. 

5.2. Jane Properties Subdivision Concept Plan. 
5.3. Pickle ball Discussion: Quotes and Commissioner Stier Update. 
5.4. Administrator Update. 
 
 

 6. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS. 
6.1. Commissioner Comments. 
6.2. Upcoming Meetings. 

1. Next Regular Meeting, 5:00 PM, Tuesday, February 19, 2019.   
 
 

 7. Adjourn. 

 
 



 
 

BELLE PLAINE PARK BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING  
December 17, 2018 

 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 1.1. Roll Call. 
 
The Belle Plaine Park Board met in Regular Session on Monday, December 17, 2018 at City Hall, 218 
North Meridian Street, Belle Plaine, Minnesota. Commissioner Chris Kehr called the meeting to order at 
5:00 PM with Commissioners Ryan Herrmann, and Liann Hanson present. 
 
Also present were Council Liaisons Ben Stier and Cary Coop and City Administrator Meyer. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Coop, second by Commissioner Herrmann, to approve the agenda as 
presented. ALL VOTE AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.  3.1. Regular Session Minutes of November 19, 2018. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Hanson, second by Commissioner Coop, to approve the Regular Session 
Minutes of November 19, 2018.  
 
4. TREASURERS REPORT. 4.1. Park Fund 205 Budget Update. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Coop, second by Commissioner Stier, to accept the Treasurers Report. ALL 
VOTED AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  

 
5. BUSINESS. 
5.1. Ongoing and Future Projects. 
 
City Administrator Meyer explained that pricing for the pickle ball court is still out. The estimate from 
Procoat given previously was for the topcoat and paining only. A specific court base needed and the 
quotes have not come back from that company yet as the company wanted to visit the sites before 
providing a quote.  
 
City Administrator Meyer explained the future of the Buffalo Street Property noting tree clearing this winter 
along with storm water correction.  
 
City Administrator Meyer explained an email was sent to the DNR regarding the boat landing and Canoe 
rest area with no response. Meyer noted the DNR was recently in Belle Plaine cleaning up tires on their 
property off of Cherry street. Commissioner Herrmann explained the DNR was not opening snow trails 
from Belle Plaine to Jordan due to lack of money for upkeep.  
 
City Administrator Meyer explained as part of departmental changes happening within the City, Public 
Works will assign one individual who will be in charge of Park maintenance, record keeping and long term 
tracking of equipment.  
 
City Administrator Meyer requested direction from Commissioners on priority projects for 2019. 
Councilmember Coop explained his proposal of a park in the development south of Belle Plaine on the hill 
which currently does not have a park. Coop explained he has met with residents in the area and is 
proposing a strip of land, City owned used as a gravel road to the water tower as a potential small park 
aimed for younger children. Meyer explained the road is part of a street right of way to be used when 
future development occurs. Commissioner Herrmann questioned if a smaller park would apiece the 
resident’s needs.  



City Administrator Meyer inquired if Robert Creek trail was still on the priority list. Commissioner Stier 
suggested cutting the trail in and holding off on creating a parking lot suggesting if the trail is getting used 
the next step would be adding a parking lot. Commissioner Hanson explained she has heard of families in 
the area trying to use the land for trails currently. Commissioner Herrmann believes in order to make the 
area appealing to residents a parking lot should be installed. Herrmann noted parking along the gravel 
road is not safe. Meyer concluded further discussion and planning would move forward at the January 
and February meetings. Commissioner Kehr suggested working on getting a concept plan for the Hockey 
Rink as part of the long-term planning file. Meyer concluded a park map print out will be included in an 
upcoming meeting once the board has outlined a potential design the next step would be to ask Council 
to approve contacting an engineering firm. Commissioner Stier inquired on why the hydrant is not used to 
flood the hockey rink instead of using a firetruck, which is breaking through the ice causing big ruts. 
Meyer explained she would discuss the concern with the public works department.  
 
The following list of 2019 priorities was the consensus of the commission: 
Robert Creek 
Hickory Concept Plan 
Water Storage Park Area 
Pickle ball Courts – Addressing Century park issues of Pickle ball is not feasible.  
Buffalo Street/ Sledding hill.  
 
6. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS. 
6.1. Commissioner Comments. 
 
Commissioner Herrmann inquired on how that park budget works. City Administrator Meyer explained 
expenses are planned long term as incoming levy money is limited to $20,000.00 annually. Meyer noted 
most parks are built as development is being platted citing Heritage Park took 5 years to build. Each 
portion was built with five different street projects. Commissioner Coop requested a fence between the 
park and road be added at Prairie Park for safety reasons. Coop requested an updated on making the 
dog park handicap accessible. Meyer explained it is on the work list for Public Works.  
 
6.2. Upcoming Meetings. 

1. Next Regular Meeting, 5:00 PM, Monday, January 21, 2019.   
 
Commissioners were reminded of upcoming meetings as published.  
 
7. Adjourn. 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Stier, second by Commissioner Kehr to adjourn at 5:45 PM. ALL VOTED 
AYE. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Renee Eyrich 
       Recording Secretary 
 

 
 



205 Park Fund Summary

Updated through 12‐31‐2018

Account Balance $125,124.78

Paid Expenses Since Last Update

Revenues Since Last Update

Round‐Up Program ($147.90 YTD) $10.50

Committed Expenses

Reserves

     Trail Development $21,000.00

Future Tax Revenue

Summary

Account Balance $125,124.78

    (‐)Committed Expenses $0.00

    (‐)Reserves $21,000.00

     Actual Account Balance Unaccounted For $104,124.78



  MEMORANDUM 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
January 22, 2019 
 
 
TO:  Chairperson Kehr 

Members of the Park Board 
Administrator Meyer 

 
FROM: Cynthia Smith Strack, Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: SMSC Scott County Trail Grant Program Application  
 
 
The Shakopee Mdewakanton Sioux Community sponsors the Scott County Trail Grant Program providing for 
trail projects which fill trail gaps, augment existing trail systems, improve access to existing public natural areas, 
and/or provide additional environmental benefit. SMSC has reopened the application deadline for the Program 
to provide for consideration of additional grant requests.  
 
The City has previously has established the Beautiful Prairie Trail and has adopted a future trail plan that 
identifies a gap in looping of the trail facility. A proposed grant project will close an existing trail gap and provide 
for looping of trail facilities as illustrated in the attached map.  
 
The proposed trail connection project furthers community health, wellness, and resilience goals and policies 
included in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan including active living, convenient access to healthy local food 
options, fit environments, and safe & resilient infrastructure.  
 
Project cost is estimated at $130,000 and a minimum twenty (20) percent local cash or in kind donation is 
required. The City’s Capital Improvement Program and reserves include cash resources to provide for future 
trails sufficient to cover the local match required, estimated at $30,000. 
 
Consideration of application submittal by the Park Board is requested. If supportive of grant submittal a 
MOTION to recommend the City Council authorize grant submittal is appropriate.   
 
 
 
 

 



71
4.3

Legend

TRAIL NETWORK
SMSC TRAIL 
GRANTS

0 500 Feet

This drawing is neither a legally recorded map nor a 
survey and is not intended to be used as one. This 
drawing is a compilation of records, information, and data 
located in various city, county, and state offices, and other 
sources affecting the area shown, and is to be used for 
reference purposes only. The City of Belle Plaine is not 
responsible for any inaccuracies herein contained. 

Disclaimer:

© Bolton & Menk, Inc - Web GIS 1/14/2019 3:41 PM

City Limits

Parcels (12/1/2018)

Lot Lines

Minnesota River

Protected Waters

Public Water Basin

Public Water Wetland

Protected Waters - 
Watercourse

Parks

Other Parks

Community Parks  (CP)

Neighborhood Parks (NP)

Boundary

Footprint

Image

Red:    Red

Green: Green

Blue:   Blue



  MEMORANDUM 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
January 22, 2019 
 
 
TO:  Chairperson Kehr 

Members of the Park Board 
Administrator Meyer 

 
FROM: Cynthia Smith Strack, Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Concept Plan – Jane Properties Subdivision  
 
 
Attached please find a concept plan for Jane Properties Subdivision, a conventional non-residential plat of 
approximately 32 acres recently annexed to the City. The Park Board is to provide input on park fee in lieu 
of land dedication and locations of trails/sidewalk.  Under conceptual layout Jane Properties LLC proposes 
the creation of three platted lots and two outlots. Outlot A is heavily influenced by a wetland which has been 
delineated and assigned a functional assessment value of ‘medium’ quality on a scale from low to 
exceptional quality.  

 
Parkland Dedication 
The 2019 Fee Schedule sets park fee in lieu of land dedication at 10% of the estimated market value at the 
time of platting. The fee schedule is consistent with statutory parameters. The table below details fee 
calculations. Estimated market value is from the Scott County Assessor’s Office: 
 

PARKLAND DEDICATION FEE CALCULATIONS 

   2019 Payable (Cert. 2018) 2018 Payable (Cert. 2017)

Swedlund Property   $                625,000.00    $               624,600.00  

JW Property   $                367,700.00    $               350,000.00  

Swedlund in City Limits   $                  13,900.00    $                 12,600.00  

Total   $            1,006,600.00    $               987,200.00  

10% Fee   $                100,660.00    $                 98,720.00  

If paid in thirds over 
time 

 $                  33,553.33    $                 32,906.67  

 
 
 
Sidewalk/Trail  
CSAH 64/Main Street is a collector street. Section 1205.08, Subd. 2 of the city code provides: 

 
“SUBD. 2.  SIDEWALKS/PEDESTRIAN WAYS.  In those cases where the City Council deems it 
appropriate and as designated by the Comprehensive Plan, sidewalks of not less than five (5) feet in 
width shall be provided.  Where a proposed plat abuts or includes an arterial street, sidewalks of not 
less than five (5) feet in width shall be provided on both sides of the paved surface, unless a trail is 
included as designated by the Comprehensive Plan.  Where the proposed plat abuts or includes a 
collector street, sidewalks of not less than five (5) feet in width shall be required on one side of the 
street. In all cases where sidewalks are provided provisions shall be made for handicapped access.” 

 



  MEMORANDUM 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Attached please find a map of existing sidewalks/trails and a comment letter from Scott County 
Transportation.  
 
Under code a pedestrian facility is required in the north boulevard of CSAH 64/Main east of Hickory 
Boulevard. The project review team recommends extension of the existing bituminous trail facility west of 
Hickory.  
 
The Park Board should assess the merit of trail and/or sidewalk extension adjacent to streets in the concept 
plan. The City Council may require such facilities under code and Scott County Transportation’s review 
suggests consideration.  
 
1. Jane Properties Subdivision concept plan. 
2. Map of existing sidewalk and trail facilities. 
3. Review letter Scott County Transportation.  

 
 







SCOTT COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION 
 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT · 600 COUNTRY TRAIL EAST · JORDAN, MN  55352-9339 

(952) 496-8346 · Fax: (952) 496-8365 · www.co.scott.mn.us 
 

 

LEZLIE A. VERMILLION 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

 

 

January 14, 2019 

 

Cynthia Smith Strack 

City of Belle Plaine 

218 North Meridian Street 

Belle Plaine, MN 56011 

 

RE: Jane Properties Concept  

CH 64 and CH 5 

 

Dear Cynthia: 

 

We have reviewed the concept plan and offer the following comments: 

 

 The proposed Hickory access through lanes to CH 64 does not appear to line up with CH 5 through lanes 

south of CH 64.  Lining up the roadway through lanes are needed in case of future signalization and vehicles 

crossing CH 64 under a green light condition.  Revisions to the concept plat will be needed, we are happy to 

discuss with the developer’s engineer. 

 

 The proposed access to CH 64 shall require a right turn lane on CH 64 to be constructed with the Hickory 

construction.  An access permit and detailed plans shall be required for the access and right turn lane. 

 

 The County supports a future public road on Outlot B when the property develops.  The County’s 

Transportation Plan Policy is to create interconnected neighborhoods to reduce the need for local traffic on 

arterial roadways for local trips. 

 

 Bike and pedestrian infrastructure is part of a complete urban transporation system.  Is there a plan for 

sidewalk or trail connections along the proposed Hickory Blvd cul-de sac, similar to what is south of CH 

64?  Also, is the continuation of the trail along CH 64 occuring with the access construction or with 

development of adjacent lots? 

 

 CH 64 in this area is planned to serve as the future CH 8 corridor between TH 169 and I35.   

 

 No ponding, berming, signage, and landscaping shall be permitted within the County right-of-way. 

 

 Any work within the County right-of-way shall require a County permit.  

 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the concept plan.  If you have any questions, please feel free to 

contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Craig Jenson 

Transportation Planning Manager 

 

cynthias
Highlight



75
2.3

© Bolton & Menk, Inc - Web GIS

0

Legend

Existing 
sidewalk and 
trail JW Asphalt 

This drawing is neither a legally recorded map nor a 
survey and is not intended to be used as one. This 
drawing is a compilation of records, information, and data 
located in various city, county, and state offices, and other 
sources affecting the area shown, and is to be used for 
reference purposes only. The City of Belle Plaine is not 
responsible for any inaccuracies herein contained. 

Disclaimer:

1/9/2019 12:34 PM

527 Feet

City Limits

Parcels (12/1/2018)

Lot Lines

Minnesota River

Protected Waters

Public Water Basin

Public Water Wetland

Protected Waters - 
Watercourse

Existing Sidewalks

Existing Trails

Boundary

Footprint

Image

Red:    Red

Green: Green

Blue:   Blue

cynthias
Polygon Line



BDS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE: January 22, 2019 
TO: Park Board Commissioners 
FROM: Dawn Meyer, City Administrator  
RE: Pickle Ball: Quotes and Commissioner Stier update. 
 
 
 
City Administrator Meyer will present information on the quote received from C&H Sport 
Surfaces, Inc. Commissioner Stier will provide an update on the proposed pickle ball court 
options.  
 
 
 
 
   



BDS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE: January 22, 2019 
TO: Park Board Commissioners 
FROM: Dawn Meyer, City Administrator  
RE: Administrator Update 
 
 
 
City Administrator Meyer will provide updates regarding a response from Rachel Hintzman from 
the DNR and proposed parking signs being added to area parks. 
 
Meyer will provide an overview on Outstanding Projects and Priorities, a discussion that will take 
place during the February meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
   


	AG_PARK_01-22-2019
	MIN_PARK_12-17-2018
	4.1. Park Fund Update 205FundUpdate_through 12-31-2018 
	5.1.a_MEM_SMSC_Trail_Grant_Application_Submittal
	5.1.b_Attachment_SMSC_Trail_Grant_Project_Descript
	5.2.a_MEM_Jane_Properties_Subd
	5.2.b_Attachment_Concept_Plan
	5.2.c_Attachment_Scott_County_Comment_Letter_Jane_Properties_Concept
	5.2.d_Attachment_Sidewalk_Trail_Map
	5.3. MEM_Pickle Ball
	5.4. MEM_Administor Update



